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FIMDINGE OF FACT, COMCLUSIONS AND RECOMMEMDAT IONS

HJURISDICTION:

[ The Committee finds that T¢ has Jurisdiction to reguire the First
URANTIA Society of Houston to show cause why its Charter as a Society of
URANT 1A Brotherhood should not be revoked for conduct contravening the
spirit and purpose of URANTIA Brotherhood by Failing and refusing to
execute a Licensing Agreement with URANTIA Foundation, and to adjudicate
whether or not such Charter should be revoked. Authority for this
hearing and such adjudication is found in Section 5.6 of the Constitution
of URANTIA Brotherhood. The Cormittee finds that all procedural reguire-
mznts of the Constitution have been fully met, that the reguired notice
has been given, that a full and fair hearing has been held at which all
interested parties were given an apportunity to be heard, and that the
Committee has received sufficient evidence upon which to base findings,
conclusions and recormendations.

Il1. The Committes Finds that, as an integral and inherent part of the
show-cause hearing authorized by Sectlon 5.6 of the Comnstitution of
URANT A Brotherhood, it has jurisdiction to determine all intermediate
and ancillary issues of fact which are reasonable, appropriate or nec-
essary to be determined in order to reach the ultimate issue of the
revocation of the Houston Society's Charter. Among those issues which
must be determined by the Committee in order to reach the ultimate issue
of revocation of the Charter are the two which follow.

Py The Commitibes Tinds that it has jurisdiction to determine the
identity of the true officers of the First URANTIA Society of Houston
during all relevant times during 1979 and 1980. Such a determinatlion Is
required because there were two groups of persons, each claiming to be
the true officers of the Houston Soclety during the time in guestion.
Ome group of persons claiming to ke the true officers conducted a mesat=-
ing of Society members at which a Licensing Agreement was purported to
have besn ratified; other persons claiming to be trus officers, contend
that such a meeting was not authorized by them, and was not tharefore a
lawful meeting of the Society. The validity of the action of the Soci-
ety at the meeting depends upon the [dentlty of the true officers of the
Society.

B. The Committee finds that it has jurisdiction to determine
whether or not the First URANTIA Scclety of Houston has valldly executed
a Licensing Agreement wWith URBANTIA Foundation. finding on this issue
is necessary because the failure to validly execute such an agreement is
the alleged grounds for revecatian of the Charter.

[Il1. The Committes finds that it has jurisdiction under Section 11.9 of

the Constitution of URANTIA Brotherhood, sitting as the supreme arbi-
trating body of URANTIA Brotherhood, to hear and determine cach of the
matters detailed below. Section 11.9 axtends the jurisdiction of the
Judicial Committea to "all matters partaining to the affairs of URANTIA
Brotherhood and to all differences between...any URAHNTIA Society and any
member thereof or between any members or groups of members.'! The Committee
Finds that each of the matters detailad below has properiy been placed
before the Committee for resolution, that proper notice has been
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given to all interested parties, that a Full and fair hearing has been
held at which all Interested parties were given an opportunity to he
heard, and that the Committee has received sufficient evidence upon
which to base findings, conclusions and recommendations.

A, The Committee finds that it has jurisdiction to determine the
identity of the true officers of the First URANTIA Society of Mouston
during the latter half of 1979 and all of 1980. Jurisdiction arises
because two different groups of persons claim to have been, and to be,
the true officers of the Houston Society during the same time frame.
Inasmuch as URANTIA Brotherhood has chartered only one First URANTIA
soclety of Houston, and imasmuch as URANTIA Brotherhood must deal with
its component Societles only through their duly slected officers, 1t [s
essential that URANTIA Brotherhood determine which of the contending
groups actually represents the Houston Society as its true officers.
Such a determination is essential for the Brotherhood te know what acts
of the Houston Society are the acts of a component Society of the Brother-
hood, and in order to interrelate with the Housten Society in the ordi-
nary day-to-day affairs af the Brotherhood.

B. The Committee finds that it has jurisdiction to determine
whethar or not the Texas Corporation known as “"First Urantia Society of
Houston, Inc.'" is the identical organization as the First URANTIA Soci-
ety of Houston chartered by URANTIA Brotherhood, or is a subordinate
organfzation of, or is related to, or is a successor to, tha organ=
ization chartered by the Brotherhood. Such a determination is essential
to URANTIA Brotherhcod in order to allow it to identify its own component
Society. |If the Texas Corporation is, in fact, the same organization as
its Chartered Society, or is an instrumentality of it, URANTIA Brother-
hood needs to know this fact [n order to deal with it as its component
in Houston. On the ather hand, if the Texas Corporation is not the same
organization as its Chartered Society, the existence of a Corporation by
that name will cause much confusion among those wishing te deal with
URANTIA Brotherhood and [ts component Society.

V. The Committee finds that Tts exercise of jurisdiction in the
matters covered [n these hearings does not violate the principle of
Society Autonomy contalined in Section 5.4 of the Constitution of URANTIA
Brotherhood for the following reasons:

A.  Hone of the matters determined by the Committee are purely
local in import or effect: they radiate beyond the loeal Socisty and
affect the very composition and identity of URANTIA Brotherhood, itself;

E. Section 5.4 of the Constitution of URANTIA Brotherhood 1imits
the autonomy of local Secleties by granting autonomy:

"except as limited by this constitution or delegated to the General
Council, the Executive Committee, or one or more of the Departmental
Committees., "

This provision has the legal effect of exempting the activities of the
Judicial Committee, a Departmental Comml Etee, taken pursuant to Sectlons
5.6 and 11.9 of the Brotherhood Constitution, from the scope of Society
guton omry' .
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[ Article |11 of the Constitution of the First URANTIA Society
of Houstan reads:

"This URANTIA Society, while autonomous in the conduct of its local
affairs 15 subject te the constitution of the URAMTIA Bratherhood..."

This provision has the legal effect of adopting, by reference, those
provisions of the Constitution of URANTIA Brotherhood which specifically
authorize the General Council, the Executive Committee or one of the
Departmental Committees to perform thelr constitutional functions within
the jurisdiction of the Houston Society. These hearings pursuant to
Sections 5.6 and 11.9 of the Constitution of URANTIA Brotherhood are
specifically authorized by the Constitution of the First URANTIA Society
of Houston.

D. There is no procedure established by, or contained within, the
Constitution of the First URANTIA Society of Houston whereby the Society
can conclusively determine and resolve the disputes over the major
matters before this hearing. Although the contending parties could, if
they desired, come to an agreemenlt among themselves which would be
recognized by the Brotherhood, In the absence of such agreement, the
only administrative machinery available to resolve the dispute s that
provided by the Constitution of URANTIA Brotherhood. Jurisdiction is
appropriate under the rule of necessity.

FINDINGS OM THE [SSUES:

. The Committee finds that the true officers of the First URANTIA
Society of Houston for the past two Society Years were, and are:

For Society Year 1979: those duly elected on February 22, 1979:

James P. Jarnagin, President:

Glenn Bell, Jr., Vice-President:

Lea House, Secretary; and

Adrienne Jarnagin, Treasurer: sach of whom served out a
full term of office, and:

For Society Year 1980: those duly elected on January 25, 1980:

William A. Gardner, President;

Harry Weatherford, Vice-Prasident:

Kathryn Kelly, Secretary; and

Fathlesn Roberson, Treasurer; each of whom remalned in
affice at the time of the hearing except Kathryn Kelly
who was replaced as Secretary on August 15, 1980 by James
F. Jarnagin.

The Committee further finds that no other person than those above named
held any of the four constitutional offices of the First URANTIA Society
of Houston during any part of Society Years 1979 and 1%80. The Committee




further finds that at no time during Seclety Year 1979 was there any
wvacancy in any of the four constitutional offices of the First URANTIA
Society due to resignation, abandonment or any other form of termination
of affice by an incumbent.

A.  The Committee finds that there was no dispute concernlng the
identity or effectiveness of the officers of the First URANTIA Society
of Houston prior to August, 1979: it was the slate duly elected on
February 22, 1979.

B. The Committee finds that, although there was a long=standing
disagreement within the Houston Society as to whether or not the Society
should execute a Licensing Agreement with URANTIA Foundation, such
disagreement did not polarize into a challenge of the leadership of the
doclety prior to July, 1979.

C. The Committee finds that the challenge to the leadership of
the Houston Seciety originated in the incidents surrounding a special
meeting of the Houston Society called by its regulariy-elected officers

for July 20, 1979.

l. The meeting was duly and preperly called for the announced
purpose of "fipalizing our decision' "concerning the position of our
Society In the matter of the Licensing Agreement with the URANTIA Foun-
dation."

2. Official notice of such meeting, dated July 6, 1979, was
sent to all active members of the Houston Society by Lea House, Secre-
tary of the Society, In accordance with the Constitution of the Houston
Society. Notice was not sent to inactive members who had no vote, such
notice not being required by the Constitution.

3. Such notice set forth two 'proposals'': one, "a proposal
introduced by Allen Brazell: A. Mot execute the Licensing Agreement. B.
Prepare and sign a resolution and forward to the URANTIA Brotherhood;"
and the other, "a proposal Introduced by Jim Jarnagin: A. Create a
corporation In the State of Texas to act as fiscal agent for the Soci-
ety. B. Have the corporatien sign the Licensing Aareement.'' Hembers
were asked to vote on the proposals "on this official ballot in the
space provided below, and bring it with you." Active members who "can-
not attend'' were requested to ‘'please use the enclosed envelope and mail
your vote to the Secretary, Lea House.'!' This notice complied with
Section 5.3 of the constitution of the First URANTIA society of Houston
which authorizes ''absentee voting' by marking the "notice' and by "signing
and malling it back to the Secretary."

4. Without any knowledge of, or permission by, the afficers
of the Houston Seciety, and acting without any ecolor of authority, Mr.
W. Allen Brazell wrote a letter to most, if not all, Inactlve members of
the Society (hence, not eligible to vote without reinstatement) and ta
some active members, urging opposition to the Licensing Agreement, and
enclosing a spuriows "ballet'" which was to be filled out and returned to
Mr. Brazell, not to the Secretary of the Society as required by the
Constitution.
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G Sixteen members attended Ehe meating on July 20, 1979.
The Committee finds the minutes at Tab Y4 of Exhibit E to be a true copy
of the minutes of such meeting. After the propesals of Mr. Jarnagin and
Mr. Brazell as outlined in the notice were discussed, Mr. Brazell chal-
lenged the adequacy of the notice to all qualified voters without suc-
cess, after which he produced some opened “ballats" from inactlive members
upon the forms he had drafted. The validity of the "ballats' hald by
Mr. Brazell was debated by the Society. Upon motion, the Society voted
11 to 4 not to accept the ballots '“for the following reasons: one, they
were not mailed to the Secretary, secondly, they are dated in another
hand then that which signed them."

6. Hotwlthstanding the disgualification of the absentee
ballots of inactive members held by Mr. Brazell, when the Society voted
on the issue of the Licensing Agreement, the propesal of Mr. Brazell "A.
Hot execute the Licensing Agreement. B. Prepare and sign a Resolution
and forward to the URANTIA Brotherhood,' prevailed by a vate of eleven
(11) in favor and six (B) opposed, with the President not voting. The
Houston Society did not approve or execute the Licensing Agreemant in
July of 1979.

7 The second portion of Mr. Brazell'!s proposal was to
prepare and sign a resolution indicating the action of the Society and
to send it to "URANTIA Brotherhood.!' Such a '"Resolution' had already
been prepared by Mr. Brazell, and it was clrculated at the meeting for
those who wished to sign it. The Committee finds that the resolution at
Tab & of Exhibit E is a true copy of the Resolution clrculated at the
meet ing. In spite of his opposition to the action taken, Mr. James P.
Jarnagin, President, signed the petition. Lea House, the Sacretary,
also signed it. The Vice-President, Mr. Glenn Bell, Jr., was absent.

It was agreed that Wr. Brazell would retain possession of the Resolution,
and would obtain the signature of Hr. Glenn Bell, Jr., before the Reso-
lutlion was reproduced for mailing.

8. When the Resclution was returned for repreduction and
mailing, in addition to the signature of Glenn Bell, Jr., there had been
added to it the purported signatures of at least eight (8) persons who
were not present at the meeting on July 20, 1979, at least seven (7) of
whom were inactive members ineligible to vote. Without prior authority-
from the Society, Mr. Brazell had added to the Resolution the "“signa-
tures'! of those persons whose votes had been rejected by the Society on
July 20, 1979. Upon inquiry, Mr. Brazell admitted that some of the
names were not placed on the Resolution by the persons whose signatures
they purported to be; however, he claimed oral or wreitten authority to
place each of them there.

9. Upon learning of the addition of unauthorized "signatures"
to the Resolution, Mr. Jarmagin, Mr, Bell, and one other member crossed
of f thelr own signatures from the Resolution, making 1t inappropriate
for reproduction and mailing. The Governing Committee of the First
URANTIA Society of Houston voted not to send out the Resolution containing
the purported ''signatures' of persons not participating in the wote, not
e¢ligible to vote, and not signing the Resolution.
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10. Insofar as this Committee is able to determine, the
schism in the First URANTIA Society of Houston was deliberately instl-
gated and orchestrated by Mr, W. Allen Brazell In order to reverse and
countermand the decislon of the Society on July 20, 1979, not to count
the votes of inactive members on the issue of the Licensing Agreement,
and the declsion of the Society not to mail the Resolutien containing
the "unauthorized'' sigmatures. It Is noted, parénthetically, that the
disqualified votes did not affect the outcome of the voting, as the
seclety voted not to execute the Licensing Agreement.

0. The Committese finds that at no time during the Society Year of
1979 did the officers of the First URANTIA Society of Houston, or any of
them, resign, wvacate or abandon thelr office, or cease to function as an
officer. The Commlttee Further finds that none of the officers of the
First URANTIA Society of Houston during the Soclety Year 1979 was guilty
of misfeasance, malfeasance or nonfeasance to a degree that would warrant
his or her removal by Society action. The Commlttee further finds that
there was never any action taken by the First URANTIA Scclety of Houston,
or by anyone authorized to act for or on behalf of the Society, to
gither remove or replace any of its officers for the Society Year 1979.

E- The Committee finds that, although the officers of the First
URANTIA Society of Houston for Society Year 1979 were never removed or
replaced, a few dissident members under the leadership of Mr. W. Allen
Brazell and Hr. Kermit Laurent took disruptive actions and made false
claims in an effort to divest the leadership of the Society from its
duly elected offlicers and assume power for themselwves. The Commlttea
finds that none of these actions was taken within the framework of the
Constitution of the First URANTIA Society of Houston, nor did any pur=-
port to follow due process of law. The Committee finds that none of
these actions was effective to remove or replace any duly elected officer
of the Society.

E7 In spite of the failure and refusal of Mr. Brazell and Hr.
Laurent to coopeérate wWith the Committee by participating in its efforts
to determine the true facts concerning their challenge to the leadership
of the First URANTIA Society of Houston, the Committee has been able to
piece together with moral certainty the sequence of events which occurred
in Houston during the latter half of 1979, and to assess the legal
consequences of the acts. A statement of the findings of the Committes
concerning these events follows in chronological order.

| The Committee finds that the challenge to the leadership
of the Houston Society did not occur from any spontaneous or widespread
discontent among its members concerning the actions of Tts officers;
rather, it occurred as a result of deliberate, well orchestrated unilat=
eral actions by W. Allen Brazell and Kermit Laurent.

a. Mr. W. Allen Brazell held no office or position in
the Houston Soclety during 1979. As noted above, on Jduly 11, 1979, he
sent notices of the July 20, 1979, meeting to persons not entitled to
vote, and enclosed spurious ballets to be returned to ""First Urantia
Society of Houston cfo Allen Brazell." In the letter he announced that,




at the July 20 meeting, the Soclety would select a delegate to the
Triennial Delegate Assembly. He announced his candidacy for the posi=-
tion, and enclosed a "ballot.'" MNo such item was on the agenda. Some
time after July 20, 1979, he ''called" a meeting of the Society to con-
sider a change in the Constitution to modify the provision under which
his absentee ballots had been rejected en July 20, 1979. When the
Governing Committee advised the membership that there would be no such
meeting, Mr. Brazell "cancelled" it by letter dated July 28, 1979. |In
this letter, Mr. Brazell admitted adding the names of five (5) inactive
membars to the list of signatures on the Resolution.

k. fs a result of the unautharized unilateral actlons
taken by Hr. Brazell, the Governing Committee of First URANTIA Society
of Houston took action to protect itself. On July 28, 1979, it decided
to: |)notify the President of URANTIA Brotherhood that the only official
carrespondence of the Society would bear the signatures of two or more
officers; 2) request Allen Brazell to appear before the Governing Com-
mittee at 7:30 p.m. August 1, 1979, and 3) mail notice to all members of
the Houston Society that "the malling by Allen Brazell should be dis-
carded." Mr. Brazell did not appear before the Governing Committee on
August 1, 1979, as requested. The Governing Committee woted to notify
Mr. Brazell to appear before the Governing Committee on August 22, 1979,
to show cause why his membership in the Society should not be revoked.
Mr. Brazell was notified of this action.

c. On Sunday, August 5, 1979, some members of the
Houston Society were invited to dinner at the home of Mr. Brazell. The
of fleers were not invited. The dinner was pot announced as a meeting of
the Society. Although the record of what happened at the dinner Ts not
clear, it appears that some sort of informal organization was created by
those present to challenge the leadership of the Society.

2. The Committee finds that, at a dinner at the home of Hr.
Allen Brazell on August 5, 1979, or at some other time and place which
has not been disclosed, Mr. W. Allen Brazell, Mr. Kermit Laurent and a
small number of members of the First URANTIA Society of Houston organ=
ized a group which they called "Majority Membership.'' Inasmuch as the
group did not constitute a majority of the membership of the Houston
Society, the name was misleading. The group elther elected or appointed
officers: a Chairman, a Vice-Chairperson, a Secretary and a Treasurer,
which they collectively called a "Board of Directors, Majority Member-
ship." The Committee flnds that this organization was not an activity
or Function of First URANTIA Society of Houston for the following
reasons: 1) no such offices or organizational structure is authorized by
the Constitution of the First URANTIA Society of Houston; 2) the action
was not taken by the Society or any persons authorized to act for the
Society; 3) no notice of any sort was given to the members of the Soci-
ety of any meeting to consider such action; and 4) the offlcers and
Governing Committee of the Society were functioning as its officers, and
had not abandoned or delegated their duties.

3. Although the intended function and purpose of the group
known as 'Majority Membership'' 1s unclear, the Committee finds that 1t
was used by Mr. Brazell and Mr. Laurent to challenge the authorlty of
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the duly elected officers of the Society. In a document dated August 1,
1979, (sic) it expressed in vague terms that "the Society officers and
members shall observe and comply with the Board of Directors in carrying
out the will of the Majority Membership.'"' In similar letters dated
August B, 1979, each officer of the Houston Socliety was "advised" that
"effective immediately, vour rights and privileges as (an officer) of
this Society are suspended, and you stand without authority to speak or
act on its behalf.' Each document was signed by the same four persons as
"Board of Directors, Majority Membership.! On August 9, 1979, a letter
purporting to be from the First Urantia Society of Houston was sent to
the Secretary of URANTIA Brotherhood reporting that the Society would be
represented at the Triennlal Delegate Assembly by Kermit Laurent and
Kathy Fusco. This letter was signed by the same four persons as ""Board
of Directors, Majority Hembership,' and by Four other persons as the
President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer of the Society. The
letter did not originate with the Soclety, 1t was signed by no officer
of the Society, and no such action as that reported in the letter had
been taken by the Society. On September 13, 1979, several documents
were mailed to the members of the First URANTIA Society of Houston. DOne
purported to be a copy of the minutes of the meeting of July 20, 1979,
signed by Kermit Laurent, 'Chairman, Board of Directors, First Urantia
Society of Houston" (there 1s no such office). The minutes did not
accurately reflect the events at the meeting as recorded in the official
minutes kept by the Secretary. Another document was a letter signed by
Kermit Laurent, '"Chairman, Board of Directors and Governing Committee!
announcing that an election of officers would be held on Friday, November
9, 1373, at the home of a member. Mo such meeting had been called by
the Governing Committee of the Society; and the officers' terms did not
expire until 1980,

. The Committee finds that there was absolutely no
basis Im law for any of the above acts and clalms of "Majority Member-
ship.'" The only "authority' cited by the group was contained In the
document dated August 1, 1979, and the letters dated August B, 1979.
These cite the "Constitution, Article V, 5.5 and Article X1." The only
relevant portion of Article ¥ (if any is relevant) is Section 5.5.
Section 5.5 deals with "powers" of ''this Society in formal meeting...
Section 5.2 defines Formal Meetings and prescribes the varfous methods
by which formal meetings are convened. The Committee finds that at no
time did the dissident group under Mr. Brazell amd Mr. Laurent ever hold
a formal meeting as required by the Constitution to exercise the 'powers'
of the Society. The c¢lted Article ¥V, and Section 5.5 prove conclusively
that their purported actions were not the actions of the Society, but
rather were nullitles. Article X| adopts Robert's Rules of Order, Revised,

as '""'parliamentary authority in all matters not specified in this consti-
tution.'" There is nothing in Robert's Rules of Order, Revised that

could reasonably legitimize the procedures emploved by HMr. Brazell, Hr.
Laurent and '"Majority Membership'' to usurp the powers of the duly elected
officers of the Scciety.

b. Further, the Cormmittee fFinds that, prior to November
9, 1979, there was no action by the members of the Soclety, including
those associated with "Majority Hembership,'' to either remove the duly
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elected officers or replace them with other elected officers. The
assumption by the various dissident members of titles of office was
without any semblance of authority and completely devoid of due process.
This conclusion is based wpon the following Information contained in the
record.

{1} No notice of any sort was ever given by the
Brazell faction or received by the members of the Society of any meeting
prior to November 9, 1979, to even consider the removal or replacement
of Society officers.

{2} Mo notice of any sort was ever given to any
officer of the Society that he or she was being considered by the Society,
or any part of it, for removal from office.

{3) Except for the testimony of Mr. Kermit Laurent
before the Federal District Court, which testimony is considered to be
in errar, the record 15 not only deveid of any indication of a vote by
the Society or the dissident group on the issue of replacing the duly
elected officers, the record affirmatively indicates that no such wvote
was ever taken before November 9, 1979. - This view is supported by the
following evidence,

fa) A letter by Mr. Brazell dated July 28,
1579, postpones a meeting of the Society called by him for August 9,
1979. It seems unlikely that such a meeting would have been called or
postponed if an earlier meeting were scheduled to consider the removal
of officers.

(k) The document entitled "Majority Action'!
dated Auvgust 1, 1979, (sic) announcing the formatlon of "Board of Direc-
tors, Majority Membership,'' not only does not indicate tha removal of
the duly elected officers, it calls upon such officers to ''"sbserve and
camply with the Beard of Directors,'" etc. This language would not have
been used had there been any action to remove and replace the elected
officers.

(e} The letters dated August 8, 1979, from the
“"8oard of Directors, Majority Membership,! addressed to the officers
“"suspending'' their ''rights and privileges" as officers contaln no alle=
gation that they had been either replaced or remowved. The letters were
devoid of any reference to any date, time or place of any action by any
of the members of the Society, or any hearing Tn which their removal or
suspension was considered. |f any such hearing or vote were ever held,
Tt certainly would have been referred to in the letters.

(d) The letter dated August 9, 1979, to the
Secretary of URANTIA Brotherhood makes absolutely no mention of any vote
or action by the First URANTIA Society of Houston, or of its members, to
remove and replace its duly elected officers. Although the letter is
signed by persons who were nolb, In fact, the officers they claimed to
be, this is not evidence of an election. If an election had been held,
it certainly would have been menticoned.
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(e) Im the letter dated August 9, 1979, to the
Secretary of Urantia Brotherhood, Jo Brown signed her name as Secretary,
First Urantia Society of Houston. Lea House was the duly elected Secre=
tary of the Society. In a letter dated August 22, 15979, this same Jo
Brown resigned her membership in the First URANTIA Soclety of Houstan.
She addressed her letter of resignation to "First URANTIA Society of
Houston, cfo Lea House..... Dear Secretary...!" Thus, 1t is obvious that
Jo Brown did not consider that she had replaced Lea House as Secretary.
It i5 doubiful this letter of resignation would have been malled to Lea
House if there had been an election replacing her as Secretary.

{f} In his letter of September 13, 1979,
transmitting the '"corrected! minutes of the meeting of July 20, 1979,
Hr. Kermit Laurent signed the document as '"'"Chairman, Board of Directors."
There is no such office in the Houston Society,. In another letter of
the same date calling an election for November 9, 1979, he signed as
"Chairman, Board of Directors and Governing Committee.' Under the
Constitution, the President of the Society is Chairman of the Governing
Committee. In neither of these letters is there any reference to a
removal of the old officers or their replacement by members of thea
Society. |f such an event had occurred, it would have been reported.

{g) Highly significant evidence of what happened
5 contained in two letters signed by W. Allen Brazell, The first,
dated October 10, 1979, to all members of the Houston Society extends
thanks to '"those persons who, when the former officers abandoned the
majority membership, stepped forward to assume temporary office August
g, 1979..." [emphasis added] The second, probably written on November
« B, 1979, to John Hales, President, URANTIA Brotherheod, refers to the
"removal of the Jarnagins From office' in terms more consistent with a
theory of abandonment and replacement than In térms of a remaval by a
vote after a hearing. MNeither letter makes any mention of any hearing,
any rempval action or any vote: facts which are so important that they
would certainly have been menticned had they ever occurrad.

. The Committee Tinds that the dissident group which
called itself '"Majority Membership'' never, at any time, had the active
participation and support of a majority of the membership of the First
URANTIA Society of Houston. In July and August, 1979, there were twenty
(20) active and seventeen (17) inactive members of the Society. During
its entire existence, only eight (B) active members and one (1) inactive
member were associated by name with "Majority Membership,! and one of
the active members, Jo Brown, resigned from the Society within three
waeks. On the other hand, on August 10, 1979, eleven (11) active members
signed the following statement:

"We, the undersigned, beimg members in good standing
of the First URANTIA Society of Houston, and further being
shown as active members on the membership roll book...said
roll boolk containing twenty names, do support the Governing
Committee In all acticons taken as a result of the schism in
the Society, said schism resulting from the actions of some
members subsequent to the July 20, 1979, Speclal Meetlng..."
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It is therefore clear that the majority of the active membership of the
First URANTIA Society of Houston at all times supported the duly elected
officers {the Governing Committee) of the Society, and only a minority
supported the dissident activities of '"Majority Membership."

G. The Committes finds that the purported election of officers at
an "annual meeting' held by the Brazell group on Hovember 9, 1979, was
null and void insofar as it affects the First URANTIA Society of Houston,
and that it was effective only to replace officers of the dissident
group known as ''Majority Membership.'' Such election did not, and could
not, affect the officers of the First URANTIA Soclety of Houston for the
following reasons.

|1 Since the Tnception of the Society, the annual meetings
at which officers are elected have been held in January or February with
the single exception of Society Year 1978, for which the meeting was
maved up to December, 1977, for the convenience of the hosts.

25 The term of office established by the Constitution is
"For one year and until their successors are duly elected and qualified.'
The term of office of officers elected in February 1979, did not expire
until January or February, 1980, The Committee finds that the information
given to the members of the Society by Mr. Brazell and to the Federal
District Court by Mr. Laurent concerning the expiration of terms of
office was incorrect.

£ The Constitution of the Houstom Society provides for the
election of officers at "its reqular annual mesting...'" A 'regular
annual meeting' is held '"once each calendar year at its usual place of
meeting or at the time and place designated by the Governing Committee.'
The meeting on Movember 9, 1979, was not 'at its usual place of meeting,"
nor at the regular time of the annual meating, nor was It at a "time and
place designated by the Governing Committee.' The meeting on November
9, 1979, was therefore, in no zense a "regular annual meeting.'' |t
therefore had no power to elect officers of the Society.

4. The Committes finds that the persons acting with and for
"Majority Membership,'" including those of the dissident group claiming
to be officers, were not, in fact, officers of the First URANTIA Society
of Houston, but rather were mere interlopers, having no status whatsocever,
and no authority to act In any capaclty for the Sociaty. The Committes
finds that such persons had no authority to call any meeting or set any
agenda of the First URANTIA Society of Houston which included the election
of offlecers, and that any purported election as a result of a meeting
resulting from such a call was null and void.

§. The Committee finds that the meeting on November 9, 1979,
did not have a quorum present. A gquorum is a '"majority of the active
membership.! The minutes of the meeting do not record who or how many
were present. They list 14 persons as 'woting,' which includes absentee
votes. Of the fourteen (14), six (6} were Inactive members, leaving
only eight (B) actlve members who could have been present. This is
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not sufficent to constitute a quorum, therefore, it would have been
impossible to have validly elected of ficers at the meeting.

H. The Committee finds that the officers of the First URANTIA
society of Houston who were elected on February 22, 1979, to serve for
the Society Year 1979 remained in office, and served continuously and
without interruption of their term, until they were duly replaced by the
slate of officers elected at the annual meeting of the Society properly
held on Japuary 25, 1980, to serve for the Socciety Year 1980.

1. The Commlttee finds that the Texas Corporatien known as "First
Urantia Society of Houston, Inc." is not, was not, and has never been,
either the identical organization, or the Successer to, or an [nstru=
mentality of, the First URANTIA Society of Houston, a component Society
of URANTIA Brotherhood, chartered by URANTIA Brotherhood in 1970 and
delivered in 1971,

AL The Committee FTinds that the First URANTIA Society of Houston
has not, at any time, authorized its officers or anyone else on its
behalf to organize a Texas Corporation for any purpose. To the contrary,
on July 20, 1979, .the Scciety, by a vote of eleven {11} to six [6)
rejected a motion to incorporate. Mr. Brazell led the opposition. The
matter of Incorporation had not again been considered by the Society at
any meeting prior to the issuance of the Texas Corporate Charter.

B. None of the persons listed as the incorporators and registered
agent of the Texas Corporation known as "First Urantia Seciety of Houston,
Inc.'" was, at the time of Incorporatien or at any time since, an offlcer
or agent of the First URANTIA Society of Houston chartered by URANTIA
Brotherhood.

C. The Committee finds that there is, and always has been, only
one First URANTIA Society of Houston chartered by URANTIA Brotherhood.
such Society has never divided into two or more Societies, nor has it
ever authorized any other gqroup to use its nama,

D. It is noted that the incorperators and registered agent of
the Texas Corporation were W. Allen Brazell, his wife Sue VWia Brazell,
Kermit Laurent and Cathy Fusco: all a part of the dissldent group calling
themselves '"Hajority Hembership.! |t therefore appears that these four
persons, without any authority to do so, wrongfully appropriated the
name of the First URANTIA Society of Houston, and used it as a part of
the name of their own private corporation, as a ploy or device to con-
fuse the members of the Houston Society, and to give their dissident
group an appearance of legitimacy which it did not otherwise have.

15 The record 1% not clear as to whether or nok the Texas
Corporation was chartered as a result of action by '"Majority Membership"
or as a result of the unilateral action of the incorporators. The
minutes of the '"Majority Membership!" meeting on November 9, 1979, at
which they purported to elect officers for the Society shows that the
matter was not discussed. In a letter dated November 30, 1979, to
“"Society Members, Fellow Urantians and Friends,'" Mr. Kermit Laurent
argues that ''the responsibility of governing...in accordance with the
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will of the majJority membership, is currently entrusted...' to the
officers "elected' on Movember 9, 1979. To support his argument, he
says: '"The ownership of the name of our Society, its postal address, and
the validity of its current constitutional government by the above-named
officers are facts of record with the Secretary of the State of Texas
(sie)." Although the letter suggests no authority by Mr, Laurent and
others to incorporate thelr group, it does demonstrate the technique of
unilaterally recording self-serving information with a State Agency and
then referring to the record in order to increase their own credibility.
It does seem that If the incorporators were authorized by their dissident
group to incerporate, there would be Some record of the autharization.
There is a high degree of probability that the incorporation was newer
specifically authorized by any group: |t was simply done by the incor-
porators.

2, It s noted that the pleadings and testimony in the case
of URANTIA Foundation w. First Urantia Society of Houston, Inc., C.A.
Mo. H-BO-TLZE Tn the U.5. District Court for the Southern District of
Texas, Houston Division, reflect that the defendant Corporation bases
its defense upon the theory that it is the identical First URANTIA
Society of Houston chartered by URANTIA Brotherhood. The Committee has
admitted and considered the pleadings and testimony of the defendants in
that case as 1F they were given under osath bafare this Committea. The
Committee finds the testimony of the defendants to be in error on sev-
eral materfal issues, including the ultimate issue as to whether or not
the Society of URANTIA Brotherhood and the Texas Corporation are one and
the same. The Committee Fipds that they are not identical, nor have
they ever been.

E. The Committee finds that the very existence of a Texas Corpo-
ration called "First Urantia Society of Houston, Inc.! which is not, In
fact, the same organization as, or an Instrumentality of, or a successor
to, the First URANTIA Society of Houston, chartered by URANTIA Brotherhood,
creates confusion among both the members of the Society and the general
public who wish to deal with the Society as a component of URANTIA
Brotherhood., This confusion is multiplied when the incorporators of the
Texas Corporation are, or represent, a dissident group which has openly--
but unsuccessfully-=challenged the duly elected leaders of the Society,
and who purposefully and wrongfully use the similarity of the corporate
name to confuse the members and the public as to the true nature, size
and effectivaness of their dissident group. The Committee Finds that
the Texas Corporation was organized to create confusion, and to give the
appearance of legitimacy to a group which otherwise had no status in
URANT 1A Brotherhood.

Fi The Commlttee finds that the claims to legitimacy by the
dissident members of the Houston Society have been fully litigated by a
full and fair hearing. There is only one First URANTIA Seciety of
Houston. Its only officers are those elected on Januvary 25, 1980, and
their successors in office. It is not represented by the persons
"elected' on November 9, 1979, nor their successors, nor by the Texas
Corporation called "First Urantia Society of Houston, Inc." All members
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of URANTIA Brotherheod, and all other persons of good will, are called
upan bto respect, honor and abide by this deternination.

| Il. The Committee finds that the First URANTIA Society of Houston
accepted, and its officers validly executed, a Licensing Agreement with
URANTIA Foundation. It is noted that the matter came before the Soclety
for action on two separate occasions in 1979: the first, on July 20,
1973, and the second on December 7, 1979. In July the Society voted not
to accept, or execute, the Licensing Agreement. In December, the Society
reversed its position and voted to accept, and execute, the Licensing
Agreement. The December vote has never been reconsidered or reversed.

A The Committee Tinds that the wvote to accept the Licensing
Agreement was taken at a duly called special meeting of the Houston
Society. Written notice of the meeting was prepared and mailed on or
about Movember 26, 1979, which was more than seven days prior to the
meating. Although the purpose of the meeting could have been stated
more clearly, the wording put the members on fair and reasonable notice
that the Licensing Agreement would be considered and acted upon. The
Society had been placed upon notice by URANTIA Brotherhood that it faced
the probable loss of Tts Charter for not signing the Licensing Agreement.
I'ts officers and members had been summoned to a Show Cause hearing. All
members were aware that Houston was the only Society in the Brotherhoad
which had not executed a Licensing Agreement with URANTIA Foundation.
The matter had been under dispute for years, and needed to be termi-
nated. The Licensing Agreement was therefare the abvious and prinelpal
topic to be discussed at a meeting to consider the "status of the Soci-
ety." The Society Constitution allowed this matter to be resolved at a
spacial meeting. See Section 5.5.a.

B. A quorum was present at the meeting. There were twenty (20)
active members at the time. A quorum 15 a "majority of the active
membership.!" Eleven (11) active members were present.

C. On the motion to accept and execute the Licensing Agreement,
the vote was nine {3) favoring, one [1) opposing, and one (1) absten-
tion. Thus, the motion carried by substantially more than the majoricy
of a guorum necessary to constitute the '"action" of the Soclety. The
minutes reflect that three (3) absent active members had wricten letters
supporting the action taken. This brings to a total of twelve (12)
active members out of a total of twenty (20) active members who are on
record as supporting the acceptance and execution of the Licensing
Agrecment.

. Although the Committee would have preferred stronger support
for the Licensing Agreement for the health of the Society, its authority
is limited to a determination of the validity of the Society's action.
The Committee has no doubt that, under the Constitution of the First
URANTIA Society of Houston, and in accordance with accepted adminis-
trative law and parliamentary procedure, the vote to accept and execute
the Licensing Agreement was, under the circumstances, sufficent as a
matter of law to constitute the "action of the Society.!




COHCLUSTONS AND RECOMMEMDAT I ONS :

15 The Committee concludes that the majority of the active members of
the First URANTIA Society 'of Houston do now support, and at all relevant
times have supported, the duly elected officers of the Society on the
ssue of the leadership of the Seciety. From July, 1979, through the
date of the hearing (December 12-13, 1980} there was never any time at
which more active members supported the dissident group leaders than
supported the duly elected officers of the Society.

Il. The Committee concludes that, on the separate 1ssue of signing the
Licensing Agreement, until December, 1979, the majority of the active
members opposed signing the agreement. On July 20, 1979, the Society
rejected the agireement by a vote of eleven (11) to six (&) with the
President not voting. However, when it appeared that the Society would
lose its charter as a result of this action, some members changed their
vote. On December 7, 1979, the Society accepted the agreement by a vote
of nine (3] to one (1)}, with one (1) abstention. The minutes reflect
that three active members who did not vote wrote in favor of accepting
the agreement under the circumstances. Although the actual vote was
adequate to constitute the action of the Society, and although the
record Indicates that a majority [12/20) of the Society supports the
signing of the Licensing Agreement, there remains a reservoir of oppo-
sition to the agreement among the members of the Society. Some of those
who voted to sign the agreement wers reluctant to do so.

111, The Committee concludes that the schism in the Housten Soclety did
not center over the issue of the Licensing Agreement, but rather over
the issue of the leadership of the Society. At the time the schism
occurred, the Society had clearly rejected the Licensing Agreement, and
its officers had accepted that decision. The schism eccurred over the
propriety of the conduct and actions of W. Allen Brazell in his efforts
to dictate meeting times, agenda and voting procedures of the Society:
matters clearly within the jurisdiction of its duly elected officers
acting as its Governing Committes.

A. The catalyst which precipitated the formal schism was the
refusal of the Society under the leadership of Tts duly elected officers
to mail out the resolution, prepared by Mr. Brazell, condemning the
proposed Licensing Agreement. Although the Society was willing to mail
the resolution, itself, it was not willing that the resolution should
contain the apparent signatures of persons who were not active members
of the Society, whose votes on the issue had been disqualified by the
Society, and who had not actually signed the resolution. When Hr.
Brazell was called to task before the Governing Committee of the Society
(composed of its duly elected officers) he not only refused to appear,
he also set in motion the various activities of the dissident group to
challenge the leadership of the Seciety. Since July, 1979, Mr. Brazell
has not participated in any of the formal meetings or activities of the
Lociety.
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B, It is noted that the dissident activities of Mr, Brazall did
not receive the support of the long-time or establlished members of the
Soclety. With the exception of Mr. Brazell and his wife, seven names
appear on documents as "“efficers" of varlous sorts of the dissident
graoup. Of these seven (7) persons, one (1) (Kermit Laurent) had been a
member for about thirty (30) days when the schism began, five (5)
(Lapentina, Fusco, Charles, Kllne, and Brown) had been members for less
than sixty (60} days, and one (1} {Nolan) was an inactive member. Other
than the Brazells, no active member of the Society who had been a
member for more than twoe months appears to have been involved in the
original dissident group.

IV. The Committee concludes that the officers of the First URANTIA
Society of Houston duly elected on February 22, 1979, remalned 1n office
until the expiration of their term of offlce and replacement on January
25, 1980, by the new officers duly elected on that date. A&t all rele-
vant times the officers acted as offlcers In all Society activities, and
the Society responded to the leadership of the officers.

A. At no time did the First URANTIA Society of Houston take any
form of actien to remove or replace any officer. MNo member proposed
such action, nor was it an agenda item at any formal meeting of the
Society, MNo officer was ever given any notice that the Society might
consider his or her removal from office for any reason, nor was thare
any hearing or vote on such matter.

B. The Committee has found no credible evidence indicating that
the dissident group calling Ttself "Majority Hembership'! ever conducted
any hearing of any sort, with or without notice to either the officers
or members of the Society, with a view toward the removal and replacement
of the duly elected officers of the First URANTIA Society of Houston.

Te the contrary, the evidence indlicates that the dissident group pro-
ceeded upon the theory that the officers of the Society had "abandoned"
their respective offices by failing to yield to the will of Mr. Allen
Brazell on the issue of the mailing of a resolution opposing the Li=
censing Agreement, whereupon volunteers stepped in to fill the leader-
ship void. The facts show that [t was Mr, Brazell who failed to accept
the decision of the Society, not the elected officers. In any instance,
the so-called replacement of officers by the dissident group was without
any semblance of administrative due process.

€. Although there may be circumstances under which officers of a
Society fail and refuse to function as such, In which case the membars
could take reasonable measures to reconstitute the officers, such circum-
stances are wholly absent here. The duly elacted officers of the Soclety
continued to function as officers of the Society at all relevant times.
They continued to call meetings at appropriate times, to preside at such
meetings, and to conduct the routine business of the Society on a day-
to=day basls. At all times the majority of the actlve members of the
Society attended, and supported, the activities of the Society conducted
by its regularly elected officers. The claims by '"Majority Membership"
that its activities were supported by a majority of the members of the
First URANTIA Seciety of Houston is clearly refuted by the facts of
record.
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D. The meeting on November 9, 1979, called by the dissident group
te elect officers for the Society Year 1980 was ineffective to Fill any
office in the First URANTIA Society of Houston For the reasons detailed
in Finding of Faet | G, above. The persons "elected" at that meeting
did not thereby become officers of the Society. Their actions are not
the actions of officers of the Society, and do not bind the Society.

V. Tha Committee concludes that the Texas Corporation arganized and
chartered in December, 1979, under the name "First Urantia Society of
Houston, Inc.! is not the same entity as, a subordinate or affiliate of,
or a successor to the First URANTIA Society of Houston chartered by
URANTIA Brotherhood, for the reasons detailed in Finding of Fact I,
above. The Committee further concludes that the organization of a Texas
Corporation under the mame "First Urantlia Society of Houston, Inc.,' was
done in bad faith by its incorporaters for the purpose of confusing,
misleading and deceiving the members of the First URARTIA Society of
Houston, the members of URANTIA Brotherhood and the general publle as te
the true identity of the Society, and In order to give their dissident
group an appearance of legitimacy which it did not otherwise have.

¥l. The Committee concludes that the very existence of a Texas Corpor-
ation by the name "First Urantia Soclety of Housten, lnc.' which is not
in fact the First URANTIA Society of Houston, and is not a subordinate,
affiliate or successor to such Scciety, causes confusion, mistakes and
deception toe the members of both the Houston Society and the URANTIA
Brotherhood, and to the public in general. This is aggravated by the
fact that the incorporators of the Texas Corporation actively foster and
promote such confusion and deception, actively misrepresenting their
true status. The reputation and good will of hoth the First URANTIA
Society of Houston and of URANTIA Brotherhood are being sullied and
diluted by the fact that a Texas Corporation, openly and publicly
opposing the policies of URANTIA Brotherhood, falsely masquerades as a
component Society of the Brotherhood.

Vil. The Committee concludes that the First URANTIA Society of Houston
has, in fact, validly endorsed and executed the Licensing Agreement with
URANTIA Foundation for the reasons detalled in Finding of Fact 111,
above. It is noted that the actual vote in favor of the Licensing
Agreement totaled nine (9) actiwve members. Three other active members
are indicated by the minutes to support the Licensing Agreement. The
record indicates twenty (20} active members at the time. While the
acltual vote was sufficent to constitute the formal “action'' of the
Society, thereby validating the signing of the Licensing Agreement by
Society officers, and while the record indicates the support of twelve
of the twenty active members, this does not represent the degree of
consensus on an emotional issue which leads to harmony and stability In
a Society.

YIll. Because of its conclusion that the Licensing Agreement was, in
fact, endorsed and slgned by the First URANTIA Society of Houston, the
Committee also concludes that there is no basis to revoke the Charter of
the Society for faliling to sign the agreement, and that the Charter
should not be revoked on this around. No other basis for revocation of
the Houston Charter was before the Committee at this hearing.
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[%. The Committee recommends: :

L That URANTIA Brotherhood mafl Lo each person who was summoned
to appear before this hearing:

l. a copy of these Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommen-=
dations;

2. a cover letter which identifies the true offlcers of the
Houston Society and which advises all persons concerned that the Texas
Corporation "First Urantia Society of Houston, Inc.' is not In any way
affillated with URANTIA Brotherhood; and

3. a8 personal appeal by the President of URANTIA Brotherhood
along the lines contained in Recommendation D, below.

B. That URANTIA Brotherhood take whatever measures are appropriate
to halt the unauthorized use of the name of a component Society by a
Texas Corporation, and to minimize the confusion, mistakes and deceptions
flowing from the activities of such corporation.

C. That an Ad Hoc Cormittee be appointed to work with the First
URANTIA Society of Houston, through its duly elected officers, on the
matter of healing the rift within the Society concerning the Llcensing
Agreement. Although the merits of the dispute over the Licensing
Agreement was not within the scope of the Committee's jurisdiction, It
could not avoid cbserving that there is a vast amount of misinformation
about the nature and effect of the agreement which has been disseminated
among the members of the Society. For the health of the Brotherhood,
this misinformation needs to be cleared up.

D.  That the President of URANTIA Brotherhood issue an appeal to
the members of First URANTIA Society of Houston to accept the conclusion
of this hearing that the Houston Society has, In fact, executed a valld
Licensing Agreement with URANTIA Foundation, and to unite behind the
elected leadership of the Society to engage in the more important work
of the Brotherhood.

Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendations signed as of
December 13, 1980, on the dates opposite our names.

f5/ Duane L. Faw Jan. 26, 1981
Duane L. Faw date

/8¢ Burton P. Harris 2Fle
Burton Harris date

{5/ Helena E. Sprague Feb. 3, 1981
Helena Sprague date

/5/ Kenton E. Stephens, Sr. 1/31/81
Kenton E. Stephens date

£5/ Ellen Montgomery 27 January 1981
Ellen Montgomery date

Atrcest:

£5f Harlan T. Rowlaey
Harfan T. Rowley, Clerk DLF/sk 2/24/81




